
Date Published:1 March 2022     

Environment Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 9 March 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.
Vice-Chair

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2022.
Vice-Chair

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Vice-Chair

4  CLIMATE LEADERSHIP GLOUCESTERSHIRE GROUP (Pages 9 - 
22)

To note the attached briefing paper on Climate Leadership 
Gloucestershire and its progress to date in coordinating and delivering 
strategic climate action across the county’s public sector bodies.

Julian Atkins

5  SCHOOL STREET TRIALS (Pages 23 - 44)

To receive a presentation on the progress of the School Streets scheme.
Jo Atkins

6  RESTORING OUR RIVERS TASK GROUP 

To receive an interim, verbal update from the Chair of the Restoring our 
Rivers Task Group.

Cllr Phil Awford

7  WORK PLAN (Pages 45 - 46)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 
future meetings.

Vice-Chair



    

INFORMATION ITEMS

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

24 May 2022
13 July 2022
8 September 2022
22 November 2022

All

9  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT: ECONOMY, ENVIRONMENT 
& INFRASTRUCTURE (Pages 47 - 64)

To note the attached update report from Colin Chick, Executive Director of 
Economy, Environment & Infrastructure.

This report is to be taken as read. If members of the Committee have any 
questions, these should be emailed to Sophie Benfield in Democratic 
Services who will liaise with officers to provide a written response.

Colin Chick

Membership –  Cllr Roger Whyborn, Cllr Susan Williams, Cllr Chris McFarling, Cllr Dominic Morris 
(Chair), Cllr Gill Moseley, Cllr Alan Preest, Cllr Phil Awford, Cllr Sajid Patel and Cllr Paul Baker 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Committee held on Wednesday 12 
January 2022 virtually.

PRESENT:
Cllr Roger Whyborn
Cllr Susan Williams
Cllr Chris McFarling
Cllr Dominic Morris (Chair)

Cllr Gill Moseley
Cllr Alan Preest
Cllr Sajid Patel

Officers in attendance: Sophie Benfield, Colin Chick, Simon Excell, Philip Williams and 
Liz Kirkham

Apologies: Cllr Phil Awford and Cllr Paul Baker

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2021 were approved.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

4. MOTION 876 

4.1 The Chair invited Liz Kirkham, Network Manager for GCC, to present this 
update report. Members noted the following:

 Members had already scrutinised, at length, the officer response to 
Motion 876 and this report provided an update on progress since.

 There had been significant developments in GCC’s approach to road 
safety in recent months, with the establishment of the Road Safety Forum 
and the Cabinet commitment of £300,000 to support community speed 
watch and wider road safety activities.

 In addition, the new draft Council Strategy included the intention to 
deliver safer roads, healthier streets and lowering of speed limits to 
deliver Vision Zero by 2050.

 Officers in the road safety team were currently working to develop a new 
Road Safety Policy for GCC, which would include any future policy on 
20mph. It would therefore be better to establish the aims and objectives 
of the overall Policy, before progressing the approach to 20mph 
limits/zones.

 Section 2.2 of the report showed the feedback from district, town, and 
parish councils. There was nearly a 50% response rate which was very 
good and showed the strong feeling of this issue amongst communities. 
The responses included a lot of useful information for GCC to consider.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gloucestershire-county-council-news/news-december-2021/new-road-safety-forum-highlights-closer-partnership-working/
https://visionzeronetwork.org/about/what-is-vision-zero/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

 There had recently been more of a supportive response from the police 
on the wider use of 20mph which would be key in any future policy.

 It was currently estimated that it would cost between £6-8 million to 
rollout widespread 20mph, this had not been looked into in depth and 
would depend on the level of safety measures each scheme would 
require.

Questions

4.2 Members were encouraged by the report, thanking officers for their time and 
efforts in this area, as well as the recent updated response from the police.

4.3 It was advised that the public consultation mentioned would be a 
consultation on the whole of the Road Safety Policy, which would include, 
but not be limited, to feedback on the future of 20mph schemes. Officers had 
requested to bring the Policy to scrutiny in May as part of that consultation 
process.

4.4 A member questioned what the cost at 2.7.3 reflected, was this a wide area 
speed limit roll out or the cost of adding additional signage etc. It was 
advised that the figure of £6-8m reflected a very broad estimate of 20mph 
speed limit roll out after the policy was in place, taking account of the 
additional measures/engineering works that could be required. It was 
stressed that finance could not be properly identified until GCC had 
confirmed its Road Safety Policy and had agreed on a way forward in 
respect of 20mph speed/zones. As in any other situation, the resource 
implications of any new Policy would require political sign off.

4.5 It was added that to deliver a widespread policy of this scale would take time. 
Once the Policy was agreed, officers would need to review and prioritise 
works (taking into account any budget restrictions and data on accident 
records etc.). Until all of this had been done, there would be little point in 
submitting a budget request, so it was estimated that the Council were at 
least 6-9 months away from making any decisions on finance.

ACTION: Provide summary explanation on quiet lane schemes

ACTION: Keep members up to date once a decision on the areas for ANPR 
camera trials had been selected

4.6 A member reported that parish councils in their area did not receive the 
feedback survey and were concerned this could be more widespread. It was 
advised that the level of response would suggest that it reached the majority 
of parish/town councils, but the officer would take this away and follow up.

4.7 Concern was raised that the draft questionnaire and priority list at Appendix 
1 & 2 moved away from the motion’s aspiration of a presumption in favour of 
20mph schemes were there was a community want, towards a scorecard 
approach. The Member was worried that the scorecard may disadvantage 
some of the rural areas who were already in desperate need/want of reduced 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

speeds. Officers confirmed that they would watch the process closely to 
make sure no areas were being unduly disadvantaged. 

4.8 A member stressed that there needed to be a recognition that implementing 
a wide-spread 20mph policy in the county as quickly as possible would save 
lives/casualties and could making wider financial savings in the long-term. 
There was also a fear that the suggested approach of the scorecard would 
lead to unacceptable delays due to the amount of work it would take to 
evaluate the whole network.

4.9 Officers challenged this point by stating that putting a lower speed limit sign 
up on a road, did not automatically mean it would be adhered to. When the 
legal introduction of seatbelts came in, there was a reduction in casualties 
but what was not generally publicised, was there was an increase in 
pedestrian accidents as drivers felt safer on the road. Whilst the team were 
completely on board with the need to reduce speeds, they felt additional 
measures were absolutely vital in making any policy of this nature work for 
all road users. 

4.10 Even though it was important to hear from communities on their views, it was 
also recognised that many deprived communities were less likely to speak 
up on these sorts of issues. Using a scorecard/evaluation approach meant 
that those areas in need due to safety issues would not miss out.

4.11 This was why they wanted to look at the whole Road Safety Policy, rather 
than just focusing on a 20mph policy, looking at ways to deliver a whole safe 
system that worked towards Vision Zero. It was also vital that GCC worked 
with partners, especially the police on any road safety changes. 

ACTION: Invite police representative to further discussions on Motion 
876/Road Safety issues.

4.12 Another Member supported this view by highlighting that Atkins undertook a 
review of 20 areas that had speed limit reductions. The result being that 
there was insufficient evidence that these changes had made a difference in 
terms of accidents and fatalities. They agreed that it would take time to make 
changes and members needed to be patient with officers. 

4.13 Considering the draft prioritisation list, a member suggested some 
amendments that could be considered:

 Being able to identify whether the area had support from 
parish/town/district councils, elected individuals or key community 
organisation etc.

 Was the area a cul-de-sac or an existing ‘rat run’
 Using the heat map on Strava to identify whether it was a high used 

cycling area, if it was, was there sufficient cycle infrastructure already in 
place and were the roads wide enough for cycle lanes. It was added that 
painting cycle lanes on a road gave a perspective to drivers that they 
would need to slow down, and didn’t cost a lot to do so.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

4.14 The Member added it would be useful to understand whether GCC could use 
any CIL/S106 monies from large developments to make these changes, but 
also to enforce with the housing providers that any new communities should 
be designed as 20mph zones/speeds from the outset. There could be 
existing cul-de-sacs/housing estates that could easily be turned into 20mph 
or ‘home zones’ with some small additions such as signage. 

4.15 Noting comments about non-compliance in 30mph zones, the Member 
explained that setting a default speed to 20mph, meant that those not 
meeting the speed limits, tended to only speed in excess of 5mph over so 
25mph compared to 35mph was still going to have a major impact if there 
were any collisions. In addition, if other cars were sticking to the speed limits, 
that would natural slow car users down anyway.

4.16 Officers advised that another part of the prioritisation list did include markers 
for community support etc. but all the above comments would be considered 
further. GCC’s manual for Gloucestershire Streets did concentrate on 20mph 
designs for local roads, the fact that drivers then ended up behaving in a 
different way was the issue.

5. E-SCOOTERS 

5.1 The Chair invited Joe Lewin, CEO, and Alex Bowes, Head of Public 
Authorities, at Zwings to present this item, Members noted the following 
points:

 Slide 3 gave an overview of the background to the trial, why e-scooters were 
introduced to the county and the benefits the concept as a whole was looking to bring 
to the UK.

 E-scooters were one of a few ‘micromobility’ (a range of small, lightweight vehicles 
operating at speeds typically below 25 km/h and driven by users personally. 
Micromobility devices include bicycles, e-bikes, electric scooters, electric skateboards, 
shared bicycles, and electric pedal assisted bicycles) concepts that were being looked 
into across the UK to help decarbonise transport and offer alternative ways for short-
medium trips, especially in urban cities.

 There were many benefits already being seen, the demand for e-scooters was much 
higher than other forms of micromobility already, and they had a particularly positive 
impact on residents health, being able to travel outdoors and see people etc. especially 
prevalent during lockdown.

 The scheme was DfT led and had been introduced across the country during the 
Pandemic to try and kick-start green economies, as well as ease pressure on public 
transport. 

 The vehicles were still under a trial period where all relevant data would be collected 
and reviewed after November 2022 when government would decide whether they 
would continue.

 Slide 5 showed a screenshot from the Zwings app showing operational areas for the 
scooters. If they entered a red area, the power would cut out and an alarm sound 
asking the user to return to an operational area. The permissible areas shown were the 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

only areas in the county that e-scooters could legally be used on public land, and the 
slow speed-zones allowed further flexibility on speed capping in high populated areas.

 Zwings used a regulated parking bay model, unlike the ‘free-floating’ approach seen in 
some other trials nationally. The team were extremely keen on fulfilling the 
overwhelming demand from residents for their rental e-scooters.

 It was recognised that residents in areas further out of town that did not have 
immediate access to a parking bay also needed a convenient and sustainable 
alternative to driving a car. As such, Zwings was exploring enhancing their parking 
system by possibly trialling a model where riders can be incentivised to park in certain 
areas but have the flexibility of scooting closer to their home, rather than being forced 
to park in a bay a 15 minute walk from their homes.

 Slide 7 outlined the trial positives so far. Zwings had been operational in Cheltenham 
and Gloucester for 15 months and had around 45,000 users, which compared to the 
resident population in the limited areas of operation, was a huge proportion. 

 They had grown from 40/50 scooters in the first few weeks to now 350 across the 
service area, with more and more parking bays becoming available. Studies had shown 
that residents only needed to be about 200 metres from a parking bay to decide to 
take their car instead so having that density of availability was very important.

 The company prided itself on having one of the strongest operator safety records of in 
the UK. There had been very few incidents in the county, and this was largely down to 
the Zwings enforcement policy and how the trials had been set up, a slower roll out 
which had allowed the recognition of these vehicles to seep slowly into community 
consciousness.

 Slide 9 outlined any issues that had come up during the trial. There had been instances 
of vandalism and misuse of the vehicles, and there had been occasion where high use 
areas did not have the supply of vehicles it needed. This was noted as a particular issue 
for those using the scooters for a work commute.

 There was also a wider issue of private use vehicles on the network. These vehicles 
were not legal to ride in a public space, were not speed capped, insured or geo-fenced 
and often led to the bad reputation of e-scooters as a whole. 

 Slides 13-18 covered the safety aspect in more depth. Zwings had a number of 
initiatives on education and enforcement. Users were continually educated on the best 
and safest way to use these vehicles, be that through the user’s app, via text message, 
leaflets on the vehicles or the Fleet Marshals.

 They had a Two-strike Policy for misuse (outlined on Slide 17) which had proved to be a 
valuable deterrent to date. Looking into the future, they would like to move to a more 
educational approach when the scooters were more of a known entity in society.

 The Local Fleet team were available 7 days a week, patrolling, looking after vehicles, 
answering questions, and reporting misuse. The team also had monthly meetings with 
the police regarding misuse. It was noted in theory, penalties for misuse, especially 
using vehicles under the influence, could carry the same penalties as driving a car. 

 All fines were reinvested into safety/community initiatives.

Questions

5.2 A member raised that on occasion, they had experienced misuse of e-
scooters, but this was normally when driving and therefore unable to report 
at the time of the incident. It was suggested that the numbers/data 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

representing misuse may not paint a true picture as many may go 
unreported. It was also raised that even though the accident numbers for 
Zwings were very good, the data presented today, did not include ‘near 
misses’ or negative feedback. 

5.3 It was reiterated that e-scooters were still very new to the UK, people were 
still getting to used to them and as users grew with confidence, they were 
more likely to refrain from riding on the pavements. GCC was also a very 
forward-thinking local authority in terms of cycle lane infrastructure which 
again would help resident feel more confident to use these vehicles on the 
road. The Company view was that with increased usage, education and 
good technology, residents will get better and better at using e-scooters 
responsibly. They were also looking this year at being more contactable to 
make reporting as easy as possible.

5.4 The forms of misuse that Zwings had issued fines for were mainly mis-
parking and pavement riding. There had also been forms of reckless 
behaviour that had warranted liaison with the police in some incidents. These 
reports had been from a mixture of local teams, members of the public and 
the police. The company had a strong policy on mis-parking after their work 
with disability groups on managing the impact of street clutter etc. They 
wanted e-scooters to be inclusive of the whole community.

5.5 A member welcomed the engagement from Zwings with local authorities 
since the trial began and praised the Company for their approach which they 
felt, was a lot better than other providers in the country. They had not been 
inundated with casework issues in relation to e-scooters, but where issues 
had been raised, they had been dealt with in a timely and responsive 
manner. It was questioned why there were certain areas of central 
Cheltenham that had a lot less access to the vehicles, particularly in the 
more deprived communities.

5.6 It was advised that the areas that had less vehicle access, had experienced 
the theft of vehicles when they had previously been put there. Zwings were 
always looking for ways to combat these issues however and wanted to work 
with communities, local councillors, schools etc. to find a way to mitigate the 
issues and find solutions to enable them to provide to all areas.

5.7 On the issue of private e-scooters, a member suggested that GCC could 
liaise with its trading standards department to investigate with sellers to see 
what advice/guidance was given to residents who were buying these 
vehicles privately. 

ACTION: Philip Williams

5.8 Members noted that the future of the trial past November this year would be 
decided by Government. GCC had provided Highway’s input on parking 
locations but other than that, it had not subsidised the scheme in anyway, it 
was a privately operated system. The strategic context for the county here 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

was very important. Having access to e-scooters gave a good option for 
resident to reduce car use and travel more actively. The trial had formed part 
of Gloucestershire’s thoughts and visions for growing in a green and 
sustainable way. There would need to be thought given to how, if the trials 
were made permanent, they would serve the whole county and not just the 
commercially viable urban areas.

5.9 On request from the Committee, it was confirmed that GCC would be happy 
to engage with the DfT and provide some qualitative feedback on the trials 
from a community perspective, rather than the Government relying only on 
the quantitative data. It would also be paramount for the Government to look 
at legislation to regulate the use of private vehicles.

ACTION: Philip Williams

5.10 In terms of future development of e-scooters, members raised that it would 
be useful to look at things such as, indicators, helmet integration, seats, 
wider bases and 3 wheeled models. All these adaptions would help improve 
the vehicle safety and help appeal to wider sections of society e.g., older 
residents. Members noted that the average age of users was late 20s with 
42% of riders being over 35.

5.11 A member welcomed the benefits that e-scooters brought for travel in the 
future both in terms of health and the environment. It was questioned 
whether Zwings knew the carbon footprint for an e-scooter and the carbon 
saved from displacing car users.

5.12 It was advised that the company were currently undertaking an all-inclusive 
study to gauge carbon emissions from production, delivery, and 
management of the scheme. It was accepted that there would always be 
some carbon emissions, but offsetting would be their last resort after all had 
been done to reduce them initially. 

6. WORK PLAN 

Members noted the future items in the attached work plan and suggested the
following to be added:

 An update on the Electric Vehicle charging points rollout to be considered in May.
 A future item on strategic planning in the county.

7. RESTORING OUR RIVERS TASK GROUP 

This item was deferred to March due to Cllr Awford being unable to attend the 
meeting.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 13:08.

Page 8



1

Environment Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title: Climate Leadership Gloucestershire Briefing Report

Meeting Date: March 9th, 2022

Chair: Cllr Dominic Morris

Presenting Officer: Julian Atkins
Countywide Climate Change Coordinator (maternity cover)

Purpose of Report: To brief the committee on Climate Leadership 
Gloucestershire and its progress to date in coordinating and 
delivering strategic climate action across the county’s public 
sector bodies.

Planned Dates

Background 
documents:

N/A

Appendices Appendix 1:  Climate Leadership Gloucestershire – 
Thematic Updates Report, February 2022

Recommendations That the Environment Scrutiny Committee:

a) notes the positive start and future plans made by 
Climate Leadership Gloucestershire partners across 
the 10 priority themes, and

b) supports the proposal to receive an annual presentation 
on the progress being made to achieve net zero by 
2045.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2

1. Introduction:

1.1 Following the presentation by Afriqnmun Lovejoy, Countywide Climate Change 
Coordinator (CCCC) to the Committee on November 29th, 2021 on the 
establishment of Climate Leadership Gloucestershire, the Committee requested 
a further Briefing/Update Report on the progress of the new group at its March 
meeting.  This report fulfils that request.

2. Background:

2.1 In light of the climate emergency declarations which all Councils in 
Gloucestershire made between 2018 and 2019, Leadership Gloucestershire 
agreed to establish the Countywide Climate Change Coordinator (CCCC) role to 
facilitate and coordinate strategic climate action across Gloucestershire’s public 
sector bodies.

2.2 At the end of September 2021 and as a key first step in supporting the CCCC 
role, Leadership Gloucestershire subsequently agreed the creation of a new sub-
group – Climate Leadership Gloucestershire – to raise the profile and level of 
coordinated action on climate change within the County.

2.3 The purpose of Climate Leadership Gloucestershire (CLG) is to bring 
Gloucestershire’s councils and other strategic partners together to collaborate in 
developing strategic solutions and maximizing the benefits of strategic working to 
tackle the climate emergency.

3. Objectives

3.1 CLG’s objectives are as follows:

1. To develop and own a countywide action plan to tackle the most strategic 
and cross cutting climate change issues for Gloucestershire.

2. To integrate climate considerations into the plans and strategies developed 
by partners.

3. To provide a collective voice and leadership on action needed at a national 
level to support local delivery on climate action.

4. To present visible leadership on climate action for the county, raising 
awareness and promoting action by residents and organisations in 
Gloucestershire.

4. Membership

4.1 CLG is comprised of the following organisations with each being represented by 
a member/chair and a senior officer (Chief Executive or Director level 
equivalents):

Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

Page 10



3

Cheltenham Borough Council
Cotswold District Council
Forest of Dean District Council
Gloucester City Council
Gloucestershire County Council
Stroud District Council
Tewkesbury Borough Council
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
Gloucestershire Hospitals Trust
Gloucestershire Constabulary
GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership
Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership

5. Decision making

5.1 CLG has no formal decision-making power or financial responsibilities and does 
not have direct influence over individual partners’ plans. It is tasked with 
producing a rolling annual countywide strategic action plan to help partners co-
ordinate and focus their individual climate plans and actions to best effect. All 
actions identified in the countywide action plan should support partners’ existing 
plans and should not disrupt or conflict with the plans or decision-making 
processes of individual partners.

5.2 CLG operates by consensus. Where there is no consensus, supporting partners 
may choose to pursue the outcome as a smaller group, whilst leaving the door 
open for remaining partners to participate at a later date. Each individual partner 
decides if and how to implement the shared priorities, working through their own 
internal governance frameworks.  Existing scrutiny arrangements are therefore 
the best mechanism for scrutinizing individual partner plans and actions but 
informed by CLG’s work in setting the broad strategic framework.

6. Meetings

6.1 CLG meets approximately every two months and has a forward programme of 
meetings for the remainder of the year.  Its strategic climate action work is 
structured around ten themes and each theme is led by a partner or group of 
partners.

Climate Action Theme Theme Lead
1. Adaptation Gloucester City Council

Page 11



4

2. Behaviour Change Gloucestershire Constabulary 
& NHS Partners

3. Biodiversity Gloucestershire Local Nature 
Partnership

4. Economy GFirst LEP
5. Energy Forest of Dean District Council
6. Food & Farming Cotswold District Council
7. Planning Cheltenham Borough Council
8. Retrofit Stroud District Council
9. Transport Gloucestershire County 

Council
10. Waste Tewkesbury District Council

6.2 The agenda for each meeting focusses in detail on up to two themes and also 
includes a progress report which summarizes progress to date within each of the 
themes.  The latest progress report is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

6.3 To date CLG has met twice virtually and has agreed Terms of Reference which 
now need to be approved by Leadership Gloucestershire at their next meeting in 
March.  At the February meeting CLG debated the biodiversity theme and agreed 
4 priority areas (water, green infrastructure, recreational greenspace, and 
carbon) along with 3 strategic actions aligned to each area.  The 4 priority areas 
and 12 biodiversity priority actions were drawn from engagement work 
undertaken by the Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership who are leading 
work on the biodiversity theme.  Further details can be found in Appendix 1. 
Transport will be considered in detail at CLG’s next meeting in April as transport 
decarbonisation is critically important in reducing carbon emissions overall across 
the county.

6.3 Whilst the majority of CLG’s meetings are conducted remotely, it is intended that 
there will be one face to face meeting per year to receive an annual progress report 
in advance of that report being presented to Leadership Gloucestershire.

7. Secretariat

7.1 The Countywide Climate Change Coordinator role acts as Secretariat for the 
Group, supported by the CN2030 climate officers’ group as necessary.  The 
Secretariat will develop and manage the shared action plan and work with 
partners and stakeholders to support the delivery of the urgent actions identified 
in the plan and agreed by the Group.

7.2 It is intended that the shared action plan will focus on:

Page 12



5

 areas that are difficult to deliver individually or where shared delivery 
increases cost effectiveness and efficiency, and helps maximize 
reductions in carbon emissions.

 actions delivered by bodies other than councils but which will be 
significantly strengthened by council sponsorship, and

 areas likely to be politically or publicly contentious but where shared 
delivery will gain better traction and support for action.

7.3 The action plan will be developed with input from partner organisations as well 
specialist advice and sector specific input through each of the thematic groups. 
Where possible thematic conversations will be held within or alongside existing 
forums such as the Waste and Resources Partnership.

8. Relationship to existing governance arrangements

8.1 While CLG is a sub-group of Leadership Gloucestershire it is very much the 
intention that it will maintain relationships with existing groups and forums at all 
levels within the county.

8.2 It is anticipated that representatives of CLG will work within their existing 
governance and scrutiny frameworks to help embed the principles of coordinated 
climate change delivery and to ensure that organisational climate and carbon 
reduction plans are in place and clear processes exist for tracking and measuring 
progress against those plans and the rolling annual strategic action plan.

9. Conclusion

9.1 To assist the Environment Scrutiny Committee in its work, it is proposed that the 
Countywide Climate Change Coordinator gives an annual presentation to the 
committee on the progress being made, with a focus on those matters relevant 
to the County Council’s remit.

It is recommended that the Environment Scrutiny Committee:

a) notes the positive start and future plans made by Climate Leadership Gloucestershire 
partners across the 10 priority themes, and

b) supports the proposal to receive an annual presentation on the progress being made 
to achieve net zero by 2045.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

Thematic updates 12/01/2022

This document will be produced in advance of each meeting of Climate Leadership Gloucestershire to 
provide a short update on progress against all 10 themes:

Adaptation theme – lead Gloucester City Council 

For the purposes of clarification, Climate Leadership should seek to define the parameters of each 
theme in its Terms of Reference, to ensure work is not duplicated.

Notwithstanding, Gloucester City Council will use as its framework HM Government’s UK Climate 
Change Risk Assessment 2022 and the Climate Change Committee’s Independent Assessment of 
UK Climate Risk (2021). Work undertaken under this theme will therefore focus on eight priority 
risk areas in non-priority order:

 Risks to the viability and diversity of terrestrial and freshwater habitats and species from 
multiple hazards.

 Risks to soil health from increased flooding and drought.
 Risks to natural carbon stores and sequestration from multiple hazards, leading to 

increased emissions.
 Risks to crops, livestock and commercial trees from multiple climate hazards.
 Risks to supply of food, goods and vital services due to climate related collapse of supply 

chains and distribution networks.
 Risks to people and the economy from climate-related failure of the power system.
 Risks to human health, wellbeing and productivity from increased exposure to heat in 

homes and other buildings.
 Multiple risks to the Gloucestershire from climate change impacts overseas.

Actions for Climate Leadership Gloucestershire:

 To consider whether any existing work undertaken at the level of the County constitutes 
the equivalent of a Climate Risk and Vulnerability Assessment.

 If so: what work needs to be undertaken to update any existing document to align it with 
the Government’s and Climate Change Committee’s most recent literature?

 If not: consider what resources members are willing to commit to deliver a County-wide 
Climate Risk and Vulnerability Assessment, which should form the basis of policy 
recommendations regarding global warming adaptation.

Transport theme – lead Gloucestershire County Council 

Background
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) and all other Gloucestershire authorities each declared a climate 
emergency in 2019 and GCC committed to the following ambitious targets: 

 The County Council’s own operational emissions to be net zero by 2030;
 Emissions from all sources across the county to be net zero by 2050 (later strengthened to 

2045); and
 The county to work with partners to deliver an 80% reduction in emissions by 2030, relative to 

2005.

These targets are reinforced within Gloucestershire’s fourth Local Transport Plan (LTP) making it clear 
that transport needs to achieve its share of the targets through decarbonisation.
 

Page 15



Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

The scale of the challenge
In 2018 transport accounted for 32% of all carbon emissions in Gloucestershire. This figure excludes 
traffic on motorways and rail. If through trips (i.e. motorways and rail and all elements of other 
sectors) are included, transport accounts for 44% of total CO2 emissions in Gloucestershire.
Nationally, road passenger cars account for 55% of all transport related greenhouse gas emissions, 
HGVs 16.6%, LGVs 15.6% and buses 2.5%, as opposed to railways 1.4%.
 

 
Proposed next steps
GCC has commissioned work to identify what decarbonising transport means in practice and how best 
transport can achieve these targets. In short there are only two pathways – travel less (or more 
sustainably) and travel cleaner.
 
The current work being undertaken will look at what it actually means in travel habits and behaviours 
if these targets are to be achieved and looks at different scenarios to achieving this.
Emerging results from this work are currently being studied, checked and triangulated with the 
intention to have discussions with key Members on the findings shortly. It is intended to bring these 
results back to hopefully the next meeting for discussion.

Biodiversity theme – lead Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership 

The Biodiversity Theme formed the substantive agenda item at Climate Leadership 
Gloucestershire’s  meeting on 07/02/22. The Gloucester Local Nature Partnership (GNLP) 
prepared a discussion paper and presentation on the strategic climate actions for biodiversity 
across the county, based on 4 priority areas: (water, green infrastructure, recreational greenspace 
and carbon).  GNLP representatives led a very positive discussion across all of the partners on the 
importance of halting and healing harm to the natural environment and the 4 priorities and 12 
strategic actions proposed were all agreed by Climate Leadership Gloucestershire.  The  priorities 
and actions have been co-produced by 30 of the partner organisations which make up the Local 
Nature Partnership and build upon existing collaborative approaches to nature recovery already 
well established across the county (Building with Nature, Natural Capital Mapping, Nature 
Recovery Networks mapping and existing practical action).  The 12 strategic actions agreed were 
as follows:

Water
 Maximise catchment wide opportunities from partnerships like the River Severn 

Partnership
 Deliver a county-wide programme of natural flood management
 Explore new wetland creation, floodplain restoration and managed realignment 

opportunities

Page 16



Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

Green Infrastructure
 Secure biodiversity gains in new development and retrofit
 Training and embedding a holistic approach to green infrastructure within local 

government and public sector bodies
 Helping existing resources to go further in delivering green infrastructure projects

Recreational Greenspace
 Create a large-scale Nature Park based on the washlands of the River Severn
 Launch a call for sites for the creation of new parks and accessible green spaces
 Increase diversity and inclusion in the accessibility of greenspace

Carbon
 Support the delivery of the Gloucestershire Tree Strategy
 Explore the carbon capture and storage potential of wetlands and wet woodlands
 Maximise the carbon sequestration potential of farming

As a parallel strand, GLNP is supporting the GFirst LEP to develop a Gloucestershire Nature and 
Climate Fund to help deliver offsite Biodiversity Net Gain and establish a carbon market for the 
county and it is hoped that this investment vehicle will become a significant instrument in 
delivering nature recovery actions across the county.

The GNLP will now work with CLG partners to develop these actions further and embed them 
within partner work programmes with the aim of identifying demonstration projects against each 
of the 12 actions.

Retrofit theme – lead Stroud District Council 

There is a well-established practice of public sector partnership working in Gloucestershire: 
Health, housing and the Voluntary Community Sector are effectively collaborating on securing and 
administering funds for affordable warmth; local authority partners are mobilising themselves to 
deal with the different target market of the private householder through ‘Innovate to Renovate’; 
there has been a good uptake of funds and support for work on public sector estates with 
investment coming in through the Public Sector Decarbonisation Funds and Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Funds that will realise capital improvements across the county.  Excellent links 
have been made with South Gloucestershire and Stroud College and a project is currently being 
developed for application to the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) to boost green and 
retrofit skills on a local and regional level. Individual bodies are also working in partnership with 
others (e.g. Publica; LGA; Local Partnerships and SW Energy Hub) to develop tools; establish 
strategy and scope options. 
 
Our collective track record is an excellent beginning and brings early lessons of what our watch 
points and first concerns should be: the need to protect, maintain and grow the status quo; the 
need to note and plan for the provision gaps (e.g. support to businesses); the importance of 
‘revenue’ in supporting the effective roll out of the capital grants; the need to raise profile and 
information sharing so that the multi-faceted aspects of the retrofit challenge are addressed as 
integral to all action on health, education and skills and economy; the need to anticipate and 
mitigate the impacts of national incentive schemes (e.g. Green Homes Grant failings; pledge 
campaigns aimed at business with limited support offering for those wanting to take action; the 
demand that the expected Springtime grants for ASHP will bring).  We also need to consider what 
the scale of ambition is for retrofit and how this matches our spheres of influence and capacity to 
deliver it and, what governance structures and collaboration mechanisms will support this best. In 

Page 17



Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

line with this we need to have an approach to Government that supports the development of 
effective national support and schemes and an action plan that ensures we are prepared with 
infrastructure in place to meet their advantage.

Planning theme – lead Cheltenham Borough Council 

The way in which we plan for development has a direct impact on climate change.  Local planning 
authorities have long had a statutory duty to include in their Local Plans policies to ensure that 
development assists with both mitigation of and adaptation to climate change.  Measures are 
already embedded in the planning system, however we know from our own experiences across 
Gloucestershire, that these are not robust enough to influence the immediate, medium and 
longer-term outcomes to support our net zero ambitions.  The Planning theme will look 
strategically at how we can collectively influence this through the following actions:

1. Lobbying Government on driving National Planning Polcy Framework (NPPF)/Planning 
Policy Guidance (PPG) and wider policy changes;

2. Developing a clear ‘golden thread’ through the preparation of development plans and 
challenging policy outcomes through the statutory development plan examination 
process;

3. Developing best practice, that stretches the policy outcomes above and ensures 
Gloucestershire can be the best it can be in working towards our committed Net Zero 
targets; 

4. To support Gloucestershire nature through the planning process, including our approach 
to biodiversity net gain and encouraging the direction of related funding to appropriate 
schemes within the county.

Asks of the Climate Change Board:
5. To make the resource of the County Planning Officers’ Group (CPOG) available to support 

the proposed outcomes of the Planning theme; and
6. To ensure alignment of the Planning theme with the Transport theme, recognising that 

around 30% of carbon emissions currently derive from transport.

Behaviour change theme – lead Police and NHS 

The behaviour change theme will interlink with every other theme identified by Climate 
Leadership Gloucestershire and need to develop messaging which clearly focuses on the co-
benefits of action on climate change, particularly on health, wellbeing and our economy. These 
business and case studies can be used to both to both influence individuals and organisations to 
take action but also where necessary to invest in improving their behaviours and infrastructure to 
reduce carbon and increase climate resilience.  The proposal is that the work is initially split into 
two primary strands: 

 Organisational behaviour change (within our control) and;
 Resident/visitor/community/business behaviour change (which we can influence but is 

not within Climate Leadership Gloucestershire primary control).
 
Under organisational behaviour change there is significant opportunity to influence not just 
emissions and general waste and resources reduction but also to influence the behaviour change 
of a significant proportion of residents. The NHS, Police and Councils making up a significant 
percentage of jobs in Gloucestershire and therefore that the opportunity presented by changing 
behaviours of our staff would have wider impacts within our communities. Work to improve our 
own work based behaviours will also provide the necessary case studies to demonstrate best 

Page 18



Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

practice on decarbonisation for example of fleet electrification, reducing waste, transitioning to 
reducing plastic (through-use or alterative plastics e.g. re-usable face masks) and to influence 
other businesses and organisations in Gloucestershire to follow our lead. 

A key area for early exploration should be the procurement practices of partners including 
developing a common requirement for sustainability requirements for tenders. Staff transport to 
and from work will also be a key area to focus on including by sharing learning between those of 
us who have and have not been able to shift to primary home working during Coved bringing in 
consideration of different services provisions and how staff on shift impacts this. Internal staff 
networks were also recognised as imperative to implementing organisational behaviour change. 
The NHS best practice of a Green Council and network of 120 green champions is one example of 
how other organisations might embed ownership of climate action across their organisations. To 
take forward this first half of this theme on ‘organisational behaviour change’ we will host an 
initial conversation regarding steps by public sector staff was needed and that this should be 
schedule at a future CN2030 group meeting. This may then need to be extended to include 
facilities staff from the councils and others to initiate workplace behaviour change. 

Regarding activity on behaviours change more widely, for our residents, visitors and businesses. 
Much of this is expected to need significant resourcing of communications experts both to 
disseminate public and media messages but also to work with political and business leaders to 
advocate for more sustainable personal practices. Specifically, this theme will look to disseminate 
climate actions identified in the earlier part of the work but also all other themes whilst also 
developing the infrastructure necessary to deliver these messages. The continued support and 
development of active community focus groups such as climate networks, campaigns, citizen 
panels and business networks will be a key component of dissemination of vest practices and 
influencing wider community behaviour change. 

Economy theme – lead G-First LEP

The ‘Economy’ theme will incorporate the subcategories for business and skills support.  
 

Business: An initial pilot is providing intelligence with regards to the key barriers SMEs face in 
addressing Net Zero. The findings of the pilot will be used to make recommendations for, and 
shape longer term business support activity. The LEP, Growth Hub Network and local authority 
economic development teams provide an established ‘route to market’ for business engagement 
activity and advice. Simplifying resources, accelerating interventions with funded and commercial 
providers, identifying sector specific challenges and upskilling advisor teams will provide a 
baseline for support. This baseline can then evolve in line with the emerging business-related 
activities and environmental priorities from other themes. Costs are presented as the main barrier 
for business action and securing local and national funding and incentives will be essential in 
ensuring businesses can implement carbon reduction plans. Supporting businesses to establish 
circular and regenerative business models, that will have a lasting impact on the Gloucestershire 
environment and economy, should be the ultimate ambition of this theme.

 
Skills: There should be a join up with national and local plans, at a national level this includes the 
Green Jobs Taskforce and Energy Catapult. The Gloucestershire Employment and Skills action plan 
is focussing on local development in renewables, retrofit and sustainable construction. The 
challenges for this theme include: a) understanding what we are trying to achieve, and which 
partners we need on board; b) providing guidance to the Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel 
(GSAP) and local training providers on the specific sustainable/green skills needed in the County; 

Page 19



Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

c) reviewing the initiatives that we already have in place, and those of nationally, that could be 
adopted or scaled-up in the County.

Energy theme – lead Forest of Dean District Council 

 As lead on the energy theme within the Gloucestershire Climate Leadership Group, Forest of 
Dean District Council proposes that partners initially work together to develop a pathway for the 
county to dramatically reduce greenhouse gas emissions from energy in order to become carbon 
neutral by 2045 (as a minimum), with the intention of ultimately eliminating fossil fuels, and 
becoming energy self-sufficient and a net exporter of renewable energy. The focus will primarily 
be on energy generation, whilst also recognising that demand reduction is equally important, but 
that the latter will also be a focus of other groups working on other themes e.g. retrofit, transport. 
Importance should also be given to ensuring positive ecological, social and economic outcomes.
 
The next steps will be to initiate a cross county discussion to agree the primary aims of the theme; 
to undertake desk-based research into existing Gloucestershire focused energy strategies, such as 
the LEP’s Sustainable Energy Strategy, as well as any existing local case studies and emerging 
practice; seek to join a future meeting of the LEP Energy Business Group; identify any relevant 
strategies, case studies and resources from other counties/authorities, such as those available via 
South West Energy Hub; and explore options for the development of an energy pathway for the 
county. Following this we will report back the learnings at the CLG’s June meeting, and in the 
meantime contribute input to other themes where there are overlaps in scope, as and when 
appropriate. Some form of assessment of the county’s existing generation capacity and mix, and 
current and future energy demand will also be needed, to enable progressive reduction targets to 
be set.

Waste theme – lead Tewksbury District Council 

The management of waste and climate change are intrinsically linked and the county have a long 
standing partnership dealing with waste issues (the Waste and Resources partnership) which 
includes all of the district councils and the county council.  The partnership meets regularly (senior 
officers monthly and elected members quarterly) to consider waste issues.  The partnership is in 
the early stages of developing the county’s next joint waste management strategy which will be a 
route map for managing waste in the county.  The JWMS would generally be a long-term 
document (10 years +) but due to the uncertainly of government plans for waste this strategy is 
likely to be shorter term (max 5 years). The 3 key areas for waste which link to climate change are:

 Waste reduction / increasing recycling/ waste hierarchy ,
 Waste infrastructure (to include depots and vehicles e.g. the new strategic depot siting 

and options for greener vehicle fuels such as bio-gas/hydrogen/electric),
 Waste transfer stations and the role of and access to Javelin Park.

 
There are some real opportunities for this strand to play a key role in the climate change agenda 
as technology for greener vehicles progresses etc.  Other opportunities are opening up to the 
partnership now that the vast bulk of the counties waste services are delivered by a single 
contractor.  Although it must be noted that there are risks which will need to be navigated not 
least the potential legislative requirements that may come out of central government and these 
will need to be considered in any emerging waste strategy.

Food and farming theme – lead Cotswold District Council 

Page 20



Climate Leadership Gloucestershire

The Countywide Climate Change Co-ordinator met with Cotswold District Council’s Head of 
Climate Action and Economic Development Lead to discuss possible approaches to this theme.

It was agreed to undertake early engagement with the G-First LEP Agri-food and Rural Business 
Group, which includes a range of local and relevant partners including both agricultural-based 
universities, the NFU and other relevant stakeholders, to understand what discussions/work is 
already ongoing focused on climate, to avoid overlap or duplication.

It was also agreed to undertake desk-based research to look for guidance and best practice on 
food, farming and climate change from across the county.

Cotswold District had already started to plan for an event focused on regenerative/sustainable 
agriculture in the context of the Cotswold landscape, and this would give the work on this theme 
some early momentum.

Cotswold District already works closely with the Royal Agricultural University and has been in 
discussions with them about a significant project based around sustainable farming which could 
be of strategic importance to the County.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title: Gloucestershire’s School Streets Trial Programme

Meeting Date: March 9th 2022

Chair: Cllr Dominic Morris

Presenting Officer: Jo Atkins

Purpose of Report: Progress Report 

Planned Dates Schools Streets ETRO trial dates: 
Trial One:  Nov 1st 2021 -May 2022
Trial Two: March/April 2022-September/October 2023 

Background 
documents:

- Motion 859 Briefing Note 22nd July 2020
- SCIMB School Streets Update 24th May 2021
- School Streets: Timed Traffic restrictions – Tool kit 

for professionals (LB Hackney 2019/2021 editions) 
- GCC’s School Streets Check list 
- Travel Survey Summary report - January 2021
- GCC’s Gloucestershire’s Schools Matrix of 

Prioritisation indices; 
- School Streets Road Safety Audits (Trial 1) 
- School Streets Site Audits
- GCC’s Thinktravel School Streets Education Tool kit 

Appendices Appendix 1: Summary of School Streets timeline
Appendix 2: Summary of Travel Survey results (Jan 2021) 
Appendix 3: Summary of Impact and quotes to date

Recommendations To note progress and updated timelines for FY 22-23 for 
Trial 1 and Trial 2

     

                                                                                                                                     

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



1. Background and Aims of a School Street Scheme

1.1. This paper seeks to give members an update on progress so far of 
Gloucestershire’s School Streets Trials which are currently being delivered over 
two phases.

1.2. Motion 859 in July 2020 committed GCC to deliver School Streets as a Trial in 
Gloucestershire, with funding committed from the Climate Change and Air 
Quality Fund in FY 20-21 for 3 sites and further commitment to trial School 
Streets Sites across the County in FY22-23.   

1.3. Creating and enabling safe and accessible environments where more people 
can travel by foot, scooter and bike underpins GCC’s Local Transport Plan, 
Climate Change strategy, Education, Health and Wellbeing, Access to 
employment and place making priorities;

1.4. Walking, cycling and scooting being termed ‘Active travel’ have also risen as a 
key social distancing and safe way to travel during the COVID pandemic. 
School Streets were used in many parts of the country (and Europe) to enable 
greater social distancing with staggered start times as a temporary measure.    

1.5. In Gloucestershire, learning from best practise elsewhere, we have used 
Experimental Temporary Orders to conduct the School Streets trials over 12-18 
months to review the approach and determine its benefits and impact. Each 
Trial Scheme is therefore, delivered across the academic years. 

1.6. School Streets schemes aim to transform roads outside schools by prioritising 
the movement of those arriving by foot, scooter and bike at school start and 
finish times by restricting motorised vehicle access. Removing vehicles outside 
the school gates makes the space safer, less polluted and more pleasant, 
making it easier and safer to walk and cycle to school.

1.7. The main aims of School Streets schemes are:
- To reduce volume of traffic using roads past school gates, both school-run 

and through traffic;
- To increase number of pupils walking and cycling to school; 
- To reduce the number of pupils arriving at school by car; and
- To improve safety and air quality in and around school gates;

1.8. How School Streets operate: 
- The streets around a school temporarily become ‘pedestrian, scooter and 

cycle friendly zones’ only at set times in the morning and afternoon.
- Vehicles are not permitted to enter the street between these times unless 

they have been granted an exemption, although some schemes block the 
road all together restricting all traffic movements. 

Page 24



2. School Streets Trial 1 

2.1. Warden Hill Primary School (WHPS) and Tewkesbury C of E Primary School 
(TPS) were invited to participate in the Trial 1 School Streets Schemes in 
Gloucestershire. The schemes were launched in November 2020 and have 
been conducted in an ever-changing COVID landscape which has influenced 
travel patterns, consultation and engagement. 

2.2. The Schools have shown incredible commitment throughout the trial despite 
COVID challenges. By adopting a collaborative multi-partnership approach 
between key stakeholders and an extensive communications plan, throughout 
the consultation process, GCC has been able to receive significant participation 
and feedback from the school and local community. This approach will be 
applied to Trial 2 also. 

2.3. Baseline data: 

An extensive assessment has also been conducted alongside the ETRO, as 
part of the School Streets Trial to contrast and compare baseline road safety/ 
air quality data with users perceptions of the scheme as follows: 

i. Road Safety and Traffic Audits (including delivery observations) 
ii. School Streets Travel Survey conducted at launch  and 12 months 

(report will be finalised in April 2022);  
iii. Pupil’s hands up survey determining mode of transport and part of 

update of Travel Plan using Modeshift STARS; 
iv. Regular Stakeholder meetings and residential drop in sessions;   
v. Active Travel blog -  families sharing experiences of the School Street

2.4. The baseline ‘hands up survey’ survey showed at the start often scheme, 
showed that just over three quarters of [pupils travelled in ‘Actively’  to school 
(81% from WHPS and 73% from TPS pupils); 

2.5. The top three priorities from the travel survey for families was overwhelmingly 
personal and road safety closely followed by inconsiderate parking.  
Temporarily closing the road to traffic was seen as a positive measure to 
improve safety by parents. Time was deemed the biggest barrier to travelling 
actively. (See Appendix 2) 

2.6. Highways amendments have been implemented in Warden Hill Primary and 
Tewkesbury C of E which will run until May 2nd 2022, to complete the last 6 
months of the formal ETRO consultation process to determine permanency. 
Feedback from residents and the school community will be reviewed at this 
time. However, it is important to note, all current amendments have been based 
on feedback through the first 6 months’ consultation process and the results 
from an independent road safety audit. Due care was taken to balance safety 
versus feedback, resident’s street parking and access.   

2.7. A sustainable exit strategy for the management of the closure is being 
determined with the stakeholder groups at each trial site for May 2022 
additionally.

Page 25



2.8. Modeshift Stars Travel Plans: 

Modeshift Stars is the Department for Transport, nationally accredited Travel 
Planning platform. GCC are working with the participatory Schools (Trial 1 and 
2) to update their School Travel Plans (STP) to set clear commitments and 
actions to encouraging active travel whilst collating travel planning data.  The 
platform is accessible to all Schools in the UK. 

Warden Hill and Tewkesbury (along with 10 other schools) achieved national 
accreditation last year (July 2021) on entry level (green) and are now working 
towards the next level up; bronze.  

2.9. Both Trial 1 and 2 schools are committing to deliver key actions to encourage 
active travel and a sustainable operable school street if it goes to permanency. 
The actions include:   Regular safe road safety messaging, Pedestrian & 
Cycling training, (Bikeability, rides and confidence sessions) , participation in 
walking and cycling challenges delivered by Love to Ride -Gloucestershire, 
Sustrans Big Walk and Wheel (March 22)  and Living Streets (May 22) walk to 
school week and Clean Air day (June 22).  

2.9 Outcome summary: 

Before the School Streets trial, both schools experienced very hazardous 
parking, gridlock and chaos outside the school gates for families and residents 
alike, pedestrians, pedals and scooters and conversations dominate the street 
now creating a calmer, safer environment on the approach to school. 

An overwhelmingly positive response for School Streets has been received 
from the participatory schools and local families, who feel safer and calmer on 
the school run, which is highlighted at TPS on the School Streets blog here and 
in Appendix 3. 

A full assessment of the scheme will be determined in May 2022. All feedback 
will be assessed as part of the formal ETRO process.

Page 26

https://www.modeshiftstars.org/
https://www.lovetoride.net/gloucestershire
https://bigwalkandwheel.org.uk/
https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/products-and-services/projects/walk-to-school-week
https://www.actionforcleanair.org.uk/campaigns/clean-air-day
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/road-safety/school-streets-scheme-trial/blog/tewkesbury-pupils-get-active-with-school-street/


3. School Streets Trial 2

3.1. A School Streets Prioritisation Matrix has been developed and applied to 
prioritise Gloucestershire Schools suitable for a School Streets Trial, based 
on national best practise (LB Hackney School Streets Tool kit).   The 
prioritisation criteria and approach were discussed and agreed with senior 
management as part of a School Streets Workshop in June 2021.  Once 
consensus was determined, the priority Schools were shortlisted across the 
county.

3.2. The Thinktravel team also liaised with relevant county councillors to discuss 
the School Streets approach and its proposed application in their area. 

3.3. A full School Streets site assessment using criteria from the nationally 
accredited London Borough of Hackney toolkit was conducted and applied to 
determine the feasibility of the trial at the shortlisted locations between June- 
September 2021.  

3.4. Shortlisted locations were discussed with the Schools Streets project team 
including the Parking and TRO teams, Highway’s improvements, Road 
Safety and Police. Local Highways Managers were also invited to feedback 
as part of the process and informal discussions to gain insight into their local 
expertise.

3.5. The project team determined the final trial sites for each district November 
2021. 

The successful schools were chosen, by assuring their keenness to 
participate and commitment going forward.  

This has required a minimum of 6-month engagement lead in time (June –
December 2021), which has yielded a very positive working relationship with 
the chosen schools and key stakeholders.   Please note that two Forest of 
Dean Schools were shortlisted but have declined to take part in the scheme 
due to rising COVID cases and limited staff resource. 

3.6. Four sites have been agreed for the School Streets phase 2 trial. 

These are: 
a) Longlevens Junior School, Gloucester, 
b) Widden Primary School, Gloucester, 
c) Cam Woodfield Infants, Junior and Pre-School, Dursley, Stroud, 
d) Stratton C of E Primary and Pre-School, Cirencester. 

3.7. Full traffic assessment and hands up survey are currently being conducted 
for each site as well as the installation of air quality monitoring (diffusion 
tubes) to link in with local districts. 

3.8. All four county councillors of Trial 2 sites have discussed the schemes with 
the Thinktravel and TRO teams as well as local district councillors where 
possible. All our very supportive and are keen to be involved from the outset 
by attending the stakeholder group meetings.  

Page 27



3.9. Updated timelines: 

COVID has been still causing disruption with schools across with county, 
particularly putting a strain on staffing levels, resources, which caused the 
timelines to shift with regard to confirming the Trial 2 school sites. 

3.10. Additionally, Highway Improvements team are experiencing longer than 
normal lead in times for highways equipment and resources, especially 
illumination. Contingencies are therefore being factored into the timeline to 
enable the launch of the trials to take place in the Spring.

3.11. A phased implementation approach to the four schemes is planned to 
commence between March – April 2022 with a weekly stagger for 
implementation. 

3.12. Summary of Progress: 

The chosen Trial 2 schools are all on board and ready to take part in the 
School Streets Trial and we look forward to the launch in Spring 2022. 

Page 28



Appendix 1:   Summary of timeline for School Street 
Step 1 – Set-up

 Get political support and approval
 Establish School Street Working Group
 Work with school
 Establish School Street Working Group
 Select schools – if several potential schemes, set up a scoring matrix
 Source funding
 Legal considerations
 Restrictions
 Exemptions
 Set out timeline, ideally 6-9 months within an academic year

Step 2 – Assess conditions
 Undertake site assessments
 ‘Park and Stride’ locations
 Signage
 Baseline data e.g., ‘hands-up’ survey; traffic counts; air quality; resident 

surveys
 Home postcode plots

Step 3 – Develop scheme
 Consultation and Engagement (either before or after scheme is implemented)
 Branding
 Promotion to all groups affected (pupils, parents, staff, residents, businesses, 

local traffic)
 Design and install on-street measures at entry and exit and surrounding area
 Traffic Order needs to be in place
 Enforcement measures

Step 4 – Implement scheme
 Send out pre-implementation information to all groups affected inc Council 

Depts
 Plan for delays
 Go BIG with the launch event (apply for one-off event permits if needed)
 Carry out enforcement (fixed or mobile cameras; police; physical measures)

Step 5 – Evaluate scheme
 Collect and analyse follow up data
 Communicate and celebrate results
 Issues raised and Lessons learned e.g. displacement of traffic

Step 6 – Keep it going
 Making schemes permanent
 Identifying partners to keep the scheme running
 Memorandum of Understanding setting out roles and responsibilities to 

include promoting the scheme to new parents, updating web pages, 
continuing with mode-of-transport surveys, maintenance of signage

Source: Adapted from LB Hackney School Streets Toolkit for Professionals. Actual 
timescales can vary greatly depending on the scale of the scheme and location

Page 29



Appendix 2: Gloucestershire School Streets Survey

Introduction

The survey was live from Monday, 2nd November 2020 – Sunday, 31st January 2021.
The online survey was created by Thinktravel team with help from and supported by GCC Senior 
Consultation Officer, to understand travel modes and canvass opinions about the implementation of 
the School Street trial at Tewkesbury Church of England and Warden Hill Primary Schools.

Its launch coincided with the trial start date and was originally planned to close 18th December 2020 
but later extended due to low participation from certain cohorts. The target audience consisted of 
school pupils, parents, staff, governors, local residents and councillors in each town although no 
restrictions were in place to prevent other participants complete it. Weekly updates were provided 
to ensure additional targeting, of under-representation, could take place.
https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/public/trp/schoolstreets/schoolstreets (now closed)

The survey was made up of 10 key questions and followed by a standard demographic 
questionnaire.

1. Which School site would you like to feedback on?  Your Postcode?
2. I am responding as a:
3. What are your regular travel movements at 8:15-9:15am and 2:30-3:30pm
4. Please indicate your main mode of transport on each day of the week by ticking the boxes 

below
5. Why do you normally use this mode of travel?
6. Has the COVID Pandemic changed your travel habits?
7. Do you currently drive on the school run?
8. How much do you agree with the following topics? 
9. Do you have any other ideas for addressing traffic issues on Durham Close/Rope Walk?
10. Would you like to make any further comments or observations on this School Street trial?

It should be noted that whilst survey responses, to Q9 & Q10, could be fed into the more formal 
ETRO consultation, participants were encouraged to follow guidelines below to make views officially 
known: Any such representation should be sent in writing to the Assistant Director of Legal Services, 
Shire Hall, Westgate Street, Gloucester, GL1 2TG or emailed 
to highwayconsult@gloucestershire.gov.uk no later than 2nd May 2021 stating the grounds on which 
it is made.

Page 30

https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/public/trp/schoolstreets/schoolstreets
mailto:highwayconsult@gloucestershire.gov.uk


How was the survey distributed?

Mainly shared digitally although a paper-based version was prepared if requested – none were 
issued.

GCC Press Release (14/10/20)
“More information on the School Streets trial is available here: 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/schoolstreets 
A survey will be launched on 2 November through the webpage, so we can find out your views on the 
scheme and act on any feedback.”

Thinktravel leaflet – delivered to households within each Highways consultation zone?
Social Media - from 2nd November via @ThinktravelGlos Twitter and Facebook

Laminated Poster with QR code attached to school fences 
School messaging system
Both schools provided with short text message suitable for sharing with parents and this was well 
received. 
Direct email: Local councillors, bus company, nursery and some shops.

Page 31

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/schoolstreets


In all 239 responses were received – it is noted that some of these may have been duplicates and 
may have been completed by parent/guardian on behalf of a pupil(s) for example.

The maps below show the distribution of the home postcodes of those responding to the survey for 
each school and their travel mode.

Page 32



Executive Summary

Prior to the trial starting both schools were asked to carry out a simple hands up survey with all their 
pupils asking how they travelled to school that morning.

On Tuesday 7th September, 81% pupils from (340/419) Warden Hill Primary School travelled to 
school actively (Walk, Park & Stride, Scooter or Bike) which represents a 92% sample size.

Whilst in the week commencing 19th October, 73% pupils from (131/180) Tewkesbury Church of 
England Primary School travelled actively (Walk, Park & Stride, Scooter or Bike) which represents a 
54% sample size.

Below a timeline of COVID-19 pandemic restrictions in place during the survey window and trial 
itself:
14th October 2020 – 3 Tier system in place with local Alert Levels – Medium, High and Very High - 
Gloucestershire in High/Tier2
2nd November – Survey opens
5th November - Lockdown 2.0 in place – schools remain open
2nd December - Lockdown 2.0 revoked 
15th December - Tewkesbury Primary closed for deep clean
19th December - PM announces addition ‘Stay at Home’ Tier 4 alert level
26th December - Gloucestershire moved into Very High /Tier 3
31st December - Gloucestershire moved into Stay at Home/Tier 4
6th January 2021 - National Lockdown 3.0 – all schools to close except for children of critical workers 
and vulnerable children
31st January 2021 – Survey closes

It should also be noted that from the 239 responses, to the School Streets survey, only 10 claimed 
they were completing on behalf of a pupil.

Warden Hill Primary School 
(WHPS)

Tewkesbury Church of 
England Primary School (TPS)

Responding as: Parent/Carer 71% 76%
Responding as: Resident of School 
Street or local area 17% 16%

Responding as: Member of Staff 6% 5%
Travel actively daily 58% 43%
Travel by car daily 40% 57%
Sighted “Health & Fitness” as 
main reason for travel mode 17% 12%

Sighted “Convenience/Comfort” 
as main reason for travel mode 13% 20%

COVID has changed my travel 
habits and why

21% with 70% sighting 
regularly WFH

17% with 64% sighting 
regularly WFH

Do you currently drive on the 
school run? “Yes - what would 
persuade you to walk, cycle or 
scoot to school more often?”

25 reasons given
 Better weather
 If we lived closer
 Need car for work

8 reasons given
 If we lived closer
 Need car for work
 Children at different 

schools
What would persuade you to 
walk, cycle or scoot if you 
currently drive?

More time - 46%
Flexi Time - 25%

More time - 62%
Flexi Time - 21%

Top 2 priorities from a list of 10 
topics

Personal safety - 24%
Road safety - 18%

Personal safety - 28%
Temporary road closure - 

19%

Page 33



Appendix 3: Summary of Trial 1 Impact So Far

Page 34



March 2022 

Thinktravel School Streets Proposal 

Trial 2

P
age 35



• By 2050 Gloucestershire County Council will 

be a carbon neutral county. By 2030 we will 

have reduced our carbon emissions by 80%.

• Travelling by foot and bike to school is one of 

the simplest solutions to reducing  our carbon 

footprint quickly, but families need to be and 

feel safe. 

• GCC took action at July’s 2020 cabinet 

meeting where councillors agreed to a trial 

involving closing the streets outside schools 

during drop-off and pick-up times using 

the Climate Change and Air Quality Fund.  
This trial has now been extended into 21-22. 

P
age 36

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/air-quality-grant-programme


Aims of a School Streets scheme:

➢ To give priority to families choosing to walk, scoot or cycle

➢ To reduce traffic, congestion and poor air quality outside 
schools

➢ To encourage an active lifestyle for children and their 
families

➢ To create a safer, cleaner, more pleasant environment for 
the whole community, encouraging greener travel options. 

➢ Promote social distancing during the Covid -19 transition 
back to school

Source: https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/road-safety/school-streets-scheme-trial/

P
age 37

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/road-safety/school-streets-scheme-trial/


School streets key prioritisation criteria

✓ School community actively promotes walking, scooting and cycling to school; 

✓ Location – on cul-de-sacs or quiet residential roads where an Experimental 
Temporary Regulation order and temporary road closure could be applied

✓ Accessible walking and cycling infra-structure

✓ Engaged School and local community

✓ To have minimal displacement of traffic

P
age 38



Benefits for whole community 
✓ Safer streets for everyone
✓ Consequently, more people actively 

walking, cycling and scooting 
✓ Small inconveniences balanced by big 

health benefits and wellbeing 
✓ Cleaner air and less congestion 
✓ Pioneers for the county 
✓ Part of a national and countywide

target to reduce carbon (80% by 2030; 
100% by 2050) 

P
age 39



Local Context: 

• May-September 2021: Prioritisation matrix confirmed and top 
priority schools were audited and assessed in each district; 

• September-November 2021: GCC shortlisted and approached 
Primary schools across the county who met the priority criteria for a 
School Street; 

• Christmas 2021 the final selection was determined and awarded; 

• The second phase of the Schools Streets trial across Gloucestershire 
is planned to launch in Spring 2022.  

P
age 40



Thinktravel School Streets Offer of Support

Update
School Travel Plan & actions

Recruit travel champions 

Funded pedestrian/adult & 
family cycle training  

Support co-ordination of 
educational activities with 

curriculum linked resources 
& materials

Participation in fully  funded 
Schools Streets trial 2 was  

awarded through a  
competitive selection 

process. 

All elements make up key criteria for a School Streets scheme

P
age 41



Impact of School Streets Trial so far….. 

✓ A marked reduction in traffic using the street resulting 
in a calmer, quieter commute 

✓ More families enjoying a walk, cycle or scoot to and 
from school

✓ Reduction in attempts to use the ‘no drop-off’ zones 
and fewer cars without permits entering the street

✓ Easier access for all

Creating healthier, more liveable streets for all!

P
age 42



Feedback from Parents from current trials..

P
age 43



Next Steps….

Trial 1 

- Determine Outcome of Schemes
May 2022

Trial 2: 

- Finalise timelines for ETRO; 

- Meet with all Stakeholder groups 

- Agree Memorandum of Understanding

- Agreeing launch dateof School Streets

Key email contact: 
thinktravel@Gloucestershire.gov.uk

Website links:
Gloucestershire School Streets trial
www.thinktravel.info
Social Media: 
Twitter/FB: @thinktravelglos

P
age 44

mailto:thinktravel@Gloucestershire.gov.uk
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/road-safety/school-streets-scheme-trial/
http://www.thinktravel.info/


ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2022

9 March 2022
Report deadline: 1 March 2022

24 May 2022
Report deadline: 12 May 2022

13 July 2022
Report deadline: 4 July 2022

School street trials Natural Flood Management

Climate Leadership Gloucestershire 
Group

Draft Road Safety Policy
[feedback as part of the consultation]

Information update from the 
Restoring our Rivers Task Group

Electric Vehicle charging points

8 September 2022
Report deadline: 30 August 2022

22 November 2022
Report deadline: 11 November 2022

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7



POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Alternative/environmental-friendly 
technologies and innovative ideas within 
highways

3 Motion 891 – Climate Leadership

2 Strategic Planning 4 Annual Climate Change Strategy review

P
age 46



Director’s Report, Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Scrutiny Committee Report

February 2022

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, including 
updates on areas previously reported.  

1.0 Decisions

Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 Continuation of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee until 31 March 2023 

Between 15 Feb 2022 and 2 Mar 2022 by Cabinet Member - Economy, Education and 
Skills

 The procurement of highway services and construction phase works in connection with the 
delivery of Tintern Bridge Refurbishment Scheme Between 18 Jan 2022 and 10 Mar 2022 
by Cabinet Member - Highways and Flood

 Parking ICT Contracts Between 15 Feb 2022 and 15 Mar 2022 by Cabinet Member - Public 
Protection, Parking and Libraries

 Gloucestershire County Council’s partnership agreement with Gloucester City Council, 
Cheltenham Borough Council and Tewkesbury Borough Council in relation to the Joint 
Core Strategy Between 3 Aug 2020 and 18 Mar 2022 by Cabinet Member - Environment 
and Planning

 Gloucester City Agency Agreement Between 28 Feb 2022 and 21 Mar 2022 by Cabinet 
Member - Highways and Flood

 Concessionary bus passes and School bus passes; production, management and 
analytics, and Concessionary re-imbursement 30 Mar 2022 by Cabinet

 Bus Back Better - The Enhanced Partnership 30 Mar 2022 by Cabinet
 Draft Road Safety Policy Consultation Between 20 Apr 2022 and 29 Apr 2022 by Cabinet 

Member - Public Protection, Parking and Libraries
 Gloucestershire Statement of Common Ground - Strategic Planning 22 Jun 2022 by 

Cabinet

Pending items for publication  
 M5 Junction 9 
 Community and Adult Skills Programme 
 Library Strategy 
 Stroud Library 

2.0 Highways 

M5 J10
 Non-statutory public consultation results now published.  Preferred Route 

Announcement took place on 16th June 2021 along with associated communications 
and publication via GCC website.

 Land agents progressing land acquisition/negotiations in partnership with GCC 
Property.

Page 47

Agenda Item 9

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44161&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43421&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43421&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44162&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43790&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44311&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44311&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43789&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44090&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40377&Opt=0


 Successful bid for £35k Capacity Funding from Homes England to support local 
planning authorities in both their statutory and non-statutory functions in respect of the 
Development Consent Order process.

 Claims to date total just over £15m.
 Consultation for A38/A4019 Coombe Hill package of works have concluded and findings 

are being fed into next stage of design.
 Statutory Public Consultation is currently underway – runs from 8th December 2021 to 

15th February 2022.  The feedback received will be considered after this period to inform 
the design and the Development Consent Order process.  The consultation report will 
be published.

West Cheltenham Transport Infrastructure Scheme / Cyber
 Work started on site for Phases 1 and 2 in June 2020 and has been substantially 

completed with traffic management now fully removed and new traffic signals expected 
to be commissioned imminently.  The Phase 3 and 4 Design and Build contract started 
in January 2021 and is on programme to be completed in Spring 2022.

 National Highways’ safety critical works at Staverton Bridge and M5 Junction 11 are 
underway with Arle Court forming part of the M5J11 diversion route – with Phase 1 
and 2 works virtually complete this is no longer causing a major impact.

Gloucester SW Bypass / Llanthony Road
 Planning permission granted April 2019;
 Public Inquiry decision announced in early April by the DfT for the CPO process – this 

is subject to a 6 week Judicial Review Period and a Notice of Intent Period which 
extends until Autumn 2021.

 All premises are now owned by GCC.  Work is underway to complete all utility 
disconnections.

 Planning application for change of use (part of City Business Centre to become car 
park for displaced parking) has now been approved

 Scheme now includes segregated footway and cycleway facilities that are compliant 
with latest government design guidance from the DfT.

 Preferred contractor in place for City Business Centre demolition contract, with 
surveys, accommodation works and demolition scheduled to start early in 2022

 Levelling Up Fund bid successful at £12.822m allowing the main highway works to 
start in Summer 2022 following some unavoidable delays to the demolition schedule.

 Funding questionnaire now submitted.

Gloucester Station Access Works (Delivery with Gloucester City Council)
 New access/egress at Metz Way now complete.  Revised Bruton Way access works 

including additional drainage works will commence in Spring 2022.

Structures/Geotechnical Schemes
 Blakeney West – Detailed design complete and contract out to tender.  Market 

engagement event at end October.  Contract award in December with mobilisation in 
January 2022 with construction works planned for February 2022 with likely completion 
in Summer 2022.

 Rushmire Hill – investigation works ongoing to determine slip and failure mechanism to 
inform design.

 Badgeworth Road – design works underway during 2021/22

Page 48



 Tintern Bridge – design works underway and accelerated construction programme 
being prepared.  Ongoing co-ordination with Monmouthshire CC who jointly have 
responsibility for the bridge. 

 Walk Bridge – tendering Design and Build contract for Stroud District Council.  
Preliminary early contractor involvement to investigate possible construction potions 
prior to tender process.

Ashchurch Bridge over Rail (Delivery for Tewkesbury Borough Council)
     Planning permission for the bridge has been granted. Detailed design continues 

(Atkins).
     Legal agreement is underway.  Ground investigation completed.
 Project delivery through Design and Build contract likely.
 Works continue with Tewkesbury Borough Council and Network Rail to understand the 

complexities of the legal agreements required for the construction phase.
 Embankment and haul road construction works estimated for Summer 2022.

A435 Junction Improvements
 Works are underway to deliver capacity improvements associated with local housing 

developments with highway works due to complete by March 2022.  The project will 
also provide some enabling works for future cycle route between Cheltenham and 
Bishops Cleeve.

A435 Cheltenham to Bishops Cleeve Cycleway
 Preliminary design work is now progressing of the cycle route following an initial 

concept design. 

A419 Junction Improvements (Stonehouse)
 Works substantially complete.   Alterations planned at Horsetrough Roundabout to 

improve cycling provision planned for mid 2022. 

Highways Contracts
 Term maintenance (Ringway) – Third year of the contract is almost complete and we 

are looking forward to Year 4 of the contract.  Performance on cyclical maintenance and 
defect repair remains on target.  Defect numbers for Q3 were just under 10,000 but we 
are seeing figures start to increase as the weather is impacting our network.  Parts of 
the network which have not yet been addressed with long term solutions such as 
resurfacing remain fragile.  We are in the middle of our winter maintenance operations – 
at mid-February the total number of runs continues above profile, this is mainly due to 
the prolonged period where road temperatures have fallen below zero each night and 
for extended periods resulting in a number of double runs.  Further commercial 
discussions underway to address retention/recruitment challenges in construction 
sector.

 Professional services (Atkins) – Third year of contract underway.  
 Structural maintenance (Tarmac) – Last year of current contract.  Continued good 

performance and final year of £150m investment underway.  
 Tarmac successful for new Maintenance Contract starting April 2022 2+2 year contract.
 Street lighting (M Group) –Performance on key indicators remains satisfactory.  
 Highway Skills Academy – Current focus continues on the formation of a 

development/career path for those staff which are progressing through their 
apprenticeships in order that GCC retains the investment in time, funds and skills.  Our 
first cohort of Level 4 (HNC equivalent) Apprenticeships of 11 staff have started with a 
second cohort planned to follow next year with the high level of interest from existing 

Page 49



staff.  Highways have also welcomed some participants from the Kickstart programme 
into the teams.

Highways Delivery
 Depots/property – development of strategic plan for highways depots included in 21/22 

Service Plan in order to ensure facilities are fit for purpose.
 Ash die back – continued programme in 21/22 including planting programme to ensure 

that two trees are planted for each one felled with ash die back disease.  Discussions 
are underway with external organisations such as National Trust and others to identify 
larger woodland planting schemes off the public highway.  Programme for 22/23 being 
planned.

3.0 Community & Infrastructure 

Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) Update:

The required upgrade to the DMMO Register is due to go live in March 2022.

Total number of ‘unresolved’ applications: 180 (static from Dec-
21)

No. of new ‘min.14(1) compliant’ applications received in 
2021 (full year)

21 (none yet in 2022)

Number of applications ‘resolved’ in 2021 (full year) 10 (none yet in 2022)
Number of routes added to DM&S by ‘other means’ in 2021 
(full year)

3 (+ 1 so far in 2022)

Currently resolving, on average over the past 5 years, 7.2 applications a year 

Number of all ‘undetermined’ applications: 
Undetermined Undet-Archived Undet-Non14(2)

No. 28 52 63
(“Archived” applications are whereby the intended effect of the application is essentially nulled by a 
subsequent change in legislation (for example, the NERC Act); “Non14(2)” applications have not been ‘fully 
made’ but are still valid applications in terms of needing determination.) 

Number of all unresolved ‘determined’ applications: 
Apps with unresolved objectionsApps at publication/ 

confirmation stage Submitted to SoS Awaiting submission 
No. 5 0 32

Recent CROWC determinations:
Last CROW Committee 1 App on 5 Oct - decision to make Order for additional FP

1 App on 2 Dec - decision to make Order for additional FP
Next CROW Committee In March 2022 - Application re: Mill Farm, Greet

DfT Emergency Active Travel Fund 
 Tranche 1: Works to extend the continuous cycle lanes on London Road, up to its 

junction with Great Western Road, were substantially completed in December. Signage 

Page 50



is being erected to enable enforcement of parking and loading restrictions and coloured 
surfacing will be applied later in March when weather conditions are suitable. Public 
consultation took place on making permanent a number of associated traffic regulation 
orders and these are being implemented with some minor amendments.

 Tranche 2: Works are underway to build an LTN 1/20 (Department for Transport cycle 
design standards) compliant cycle route along the B4063, starting with the section 
between the M5 overbridge and Pheasant Lane. When these are complete, in early 
Spring, works will commence on the adjacent section to Arle Court.

ITU Public Transport and School Transport
 In October Cabinet agreed the council’s Bus Service Improvement Plan to support the 

economic recovery and measures to tackle climate change and social exclusion in rural 
areas. Our bid will enable the council to bid for significant government funds to deliver 
high quality urban and rural public transport services over the next three years. A follow 
up report will be considered by Cabinet in March to note progress to date on developing 
the Gloucestershire Bus Enhanced Partnership (EP) document.

 Following the decision by Stagecoach to withdraw service 132 and to make significant 
reductions to service 32 officers from the Integrated Transport Unit have been working 
with local communities and engaging transport operators to provide personalised travel 
planning advice and alternative transport to mitigate the impact on users. Passenger 
levels which were low prior to Covid have fallen since making a like for like replacement 
bus service subsidised by the county council an unviable option due to the high subsidy 
cost per passenger trip, over double the maximum level.

Network Management (Road Safety and Parking)
 In December a workshop on road safety policy, targets and the use of lower speed 

limits was held with stakeholders including district, parish and town councils, the police, 
fire service and external speakers. Feedback from this is being used to inform 
development of a new road safety policy and targets which will be subject to public 
consultation in the first half of 2022. As part of its 2022/23 budget Council agreed a 
further £550k investment in community and other road safety measures. Recruitment of 
a new Road Safety Team Leader took place in December and a new post holder joined 
us in late February to take this agenda forward.

 Following a competitive procurement process between October and December 2021 
officers have completed evaluating bids for selecting a provider to instal and operate 
Electric Vehicle Charge Points across Gloucestershire. A decision on the preferred 
bidder has now been taken and further details will be released shortly. This is a key 
milestone in enabling the council to deliver its plans for 1000 EVCP’s over the next four 
years. 

Sustainability
 The council has secured £1m towards delivery of its 1 million trees target, including 

£600,000 of external grants from the Woodland Trust and Forestry Commission. In 
January it appointed a Tree Officer who is taking forward plans that will see over 60,000 
trees planted in the county by the end of the current planting season. A further £1m per 
annum in the base budget was agreed by Council in February to tackle the Climate 
Emergency.

 As part of our Greener Fleet work an order has been placed for 7 ultra low emission 
vehicles for the Edge of Care team. The 6 Nissan Leafs and 1 Hyundai Ioniq will be on 
a four-year lease. During this period they will save around 45 tonnes of CO2 compared 
with the vehicles they replace, helping us achieve our climate change targets. The team 

Page 51



is excited to receive the new vehicles, which are not only greener but are also safer 
than their current vehicles. With support from AMPS, the cars will be based in Quayside 
Car Park where we are installing designated EV chargers.

Highways Development Management
 As part of the HDM Improvement Plan discussions are underway with HR to identify 

ways of recruit to some hard to fill posts where there is strong competition for skilled 
staff from private sector housebuilders and contractors. 

4.0 Strategic Infrastructure

B4063 / A40 Highways England Cycling Scheme – Cheltenham to Gloucester
     The original HE scheme, in order to fulfil funding criteria, needed to be completed by 

March 2020. This, however, was subsequently extended to construction starting in 
2021, as part of the RIS2 process. GCC officers continue to engage with HE’s Route 
Manager to attempt to ensure everything is ‘joined up’. 

     GCC has decided to take over the detailed design of this project, with the design fully 
underway with the East part of the route designed and consulted upon in Spring 2021, 
an independent audit has now been completed by a leading industry expert to ensure 
we provide the best possible facility we can within the constraints.  The audit findings 
have led to extensive enhancement of the provision, which have been heavily endorsed 
by Sustrans to the extent that they are due to become a major funding provider for the 
scheme.  The revised proposals for the East part of the route between the M5 
overbridge and Arle Court have now been published on the County Council’s website 
reflecting the feedback received to date.

     Works started in October 2021, delivering the east part of the route first between the M5 
and Pheasant Lane which is expected to be completed in Spring 2022 and will be 
directly followed by subsequent phases with the next section between Pheasant Lane 
and Arle Court.

     This scheme will have the key advantage of directly linking the project to the emerging 
£22M West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme (WCTIS) providing a 
continuous link between Gloucester and Cheltenham rail station once complete and 
include the recently successfully delivered Emergency Active Travel Scheme on London 
Road in Gloucester. The GFirst LEP Board, in December 2020, agreed that any future 
underspend on the £22M WCTIS would be ringfenced to the B4063 cycle scheme. Prior 
to this, in November 2020, £864k was secured from an EATF Tranche 2 bid from the 
Department for Transport (DfT), which will part fund a section of the works.  

     The County Council has recently successfully secured DfT Levelling Up funding to 
extend the route through Gloucester City Centre and Gloucester Docks providing 
linkage to the Gloucester Canal Towpath.  

M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 The Strategic Outline Business Case for the M5 J9 / A46 scheme was submitted to the 

DfT in January 2020;
 Positive Government announcement in March 2020, stating that the scheme should 

progress to the next stage;
 This is to progress to the Outline Business Case – the cost of which is likely to be £2M-

£3M – part of the funding came from the approved £4M GCC funding for ‘business case 
development’ in 2020/21;

Page 52



 The progression of the scheme was considered and approved by GCC Cabinet on 24th 
March 2021; 

 Discussions re- possible future funding ongoing with both Homes England and 
Tewkesbury BC due to the links to the emerging ‘garden town’;

 Ongoing discussions with HE to secure approval of options for Junction 9;
 Detailed HE feedback has been received and is currently being analysed by officers and 

Atkins. 
 Baroness Vere has confirmed support for the project in November 2021.
 Cabinet report (re- future expenditure on M5 J9 / A46) programmed for June 2022.
 Non statutory public consultation anticipated in September 2022.

Fastershire
 Removal of premises from stage 3 Gigaclear contracts - Following the approval of 

the GCC ICM report in December 2021, Gigaclear have been contacted and informed of 
the decision.  The Fastershire Team are in discussion with BDUK regarding the 
inclusion of those premises as part of the next phase of the Project Gigabit programme.  
Project Gigabit aims to increase access to gigabit capable broadband to 85% of UK 
properties by the end of 2025 by funding the rollout in areas that are not being reached 
through private sector investment.

 Review of the potential for a new Fastershire Community Offer in Gloucestershire 
- The purpose of this review is to understand what additional mitigation support/offer 
could be provided to those premises directly impacted by the removal (de-scope) from 
the stage 3 Gigaclear contracts  (such as those premises being moved to Project 
Gigabit).  The review should conclude by the end of March 2022.

A417 Missing Link
 Preferred Route Announcement (Route 30) made March 2019;
 Further public consultation took place in Autumn 2019;
 A supportive officer-level response to this consultation (a joint response from CDC, TBC 

and GCC) was sent on 8th November 2019;
 Positive announcement in March 2020 stating that the scheme has secured funding and 

should progress to DCO;
 Revised proposals were subject to a further public consultation, which started on 12th 

October 2020. A detailed GCC officer response was sent, meeting the external deadline 
of 12th November 2020;

 The DCO planning application was submitted in June 2021 and a Public Examination is 
currently being held by the Planning Inspectorate;

 An Individual Cabinet Member decision in December 2021 has authorised the formal 
delegation to officers the authority to represent the Council through the DCO process.

Local Transport Plan (LTP)
 The LTP was adopted at Full Council on 17th March 2021.

Chepstow Transport Improvements
 Consultant’s report outlined scheme options;
 Monmouthshire CC keen to progress to Full Business Cases;
 GCC Lead Cabinet Members supported a GCC financial contribution of £20K (2020/21) 

towards Stage 2 of the Chepstow Transport Study;
 A further GCC financial contribution of £30K for 2021/22 has been made to 

Monmouthshire CC;
 Meeting with relevant MPs held on 28th January 2022. 

Page 53



Cinderford 
 FoDDC yet to secure planning permission and funding for proposed extension of phase 

one of the road;
 A Section 73 amendment to vary the existing planning permission was submitted in 

April 2021 and is awaiting determination by FoDDC;
 FoDDC held a Cinderford Northern Quarter Scrutiny Inquiry in November 2021, with 

GCC senior officer input;
 Until planning and funding for the road is in place, no further action for GCC. 

Local Plans / JCS / CIL
 Review of JCS now underway following an ‘Issues and Options’ consultation which 

ended in January 2019;
 The JCS Reg.18 public consultation has now been delayed to early 2023;
 Progress has been made with the JCS authorities to review the JCS CIL – consultants 

are now undertaking this task in liaison with GCC officers;
 GCC education and library contributions continue to be challenged and declined by 

some District Councils and developers – these are in the process of being reviewed by 
GCC;

 GCC continues to not receive a penny of CIL from any of the JCS authorities;
 Stroud Local Plan – Consultation on Draft Local Plan – closed 22nd January 2020. 

Significant officer-level concerns submitted to SDC – especially transport issues re- the 
significant proposed development at Whaddon and Sharpness. Another SDC 
consultation took place with additional possible housing sites, which was responded to 
in December 2020. The most recent public consultation stage (pre-submission draft 
consultation) ended on 21st July 2021. GCC officer comments were submitted prior to 
the deadline. The Plan has now been submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for 
consideration. 

 Cotswold Local Plan – ‘Issues and Options’ consultation currently underway – the 
deadline for comments is 20th March 2022. GCC officers are considering the document. 

 Forest of Dean Local Plan – Issues and Options consultation ended on 31st October 
2019. FoDDC consulted on a ‘preferred option’ – the closing date for comments was 
29th January 2021. GCC officers commented before this deadline. 

5.0 Libraries & Registration

Libraries
 No new update.

Registration 
 Face to face death registration appointments will re-commence on 24th March 2022 

following the cessation of the Coronavirus Act 2020

6.0 Waste Management 

 Following authorisation from Cabinet in December 21, an invitation to tender for the 
contract for the sale of electricity generated by the Gloucestershire Energy from Waste 
facility at Javelin Park was issued earlier this month. The deadline for submitting an 
outline proposal is 8th March. Subject to market interest, two or three companies will 
then be taken forward to the negotiation stage, which will run over the spring/summer. 

Page 54



All energy sales from the Gloucestershire EfW have now been fixed until Oct 23 (the 
end of the existing contract term with our current off-taker, EDF). The aim is to 
commence the new agreement by Sept 22, so that the council can forward sell 
electricity when considered best value to do so.

 Next day appointments are available at each of the five HRC sites. The HRCs were 
closed at 11am on Friday 18th Feb due to storm Eunice. Any missed appointments that 
day were honoured over the following week. Saturday opening at waste transfer 
stations was also arranged to help the district councils catch up on waste collections 
suspended on 18th Feb.

 Tender evaluation for the materials off-take contracts for the various waste streams 
collected for reuse, recycling and recovery at the HRCs has now been completed and a 
delegated officer decision to award contracts has been taken. Contract award letters are 
being issued. The new agreements need to be in place by1st April 2022. 

 A new communications campaign will run through March, encouraging residents to 
repair and reuse. The campaign will promote a number of local voluntary and charitable 
organisations that promote waste reduction, reuse and repair.

 Planning permission has been granted for the retrospective application made by 
Grundon Waste Management for the residual waste transfer service it is undertaking for 
the council. This consent runs until July 22.

7.0 Employment and Skills 

Adult Education Service
 Learning Co-ordinator, Exam Officer and Administrator posts have all now been filled 

with all new starters going through the recruitment processes with a view to have all 
started in post by April 2022.

 New subcontracts have all been issued and all are up and running under the current 
framework.  

 We have recently received our first Hong Kong resettlement learners and will be 
claiming the special funding for these learners on a quarterly basis.

 We have been invited to submit our ROATP application to remain on the apprenticeship 
register, this is due to be submitted at the end of February.  The process is has changed 
this year and is much more complicated than in previous years.  Final read through of 
the application is taking place on 21st February with a view to make our final submission 
on 28th February.  We are confident that we have met all criteria to be registered again.

 Matrix – received this accreditation in January without any issues for improvement.
 Centre computers and learner laptops have now all been upgraded to Windows 10 to 

allow us to deliver the most up to date ICT courses.
 Following the most recent update on Maths, English, ICT and ESOL exam pass rates 

we have achieved over 90% pass rates for all qualifications which is up on the national 
average for each qualification.

 All apprenticeship courses have recently been Externally Verified by Pearson the 
awarding body, all have passed with flying colours.

 All full cost recovery courses including First Aid and Paediatric First Aid have also been 
externally verified by the awarding body and been given very positive feedback with 
Paediatric First Aid being awarded direct claim status on the first visit which does not 
happen very often, we are very pleased with this achievement.

Page 55



Skills and Employment Hub
 The Hub is up and running with a lot of activity to encourage referrals from individuals 

and partner organisations to utilise resource from 1 February
o Already committed partners who will use the Hub to deliver

 DWP Work Coaches
 Case-UK Access to Work mental health support workers
 National Careers Service 

 119 referrals to date from various sources
 Courses running from the Hub including Work Clubs and Kickstart employability 

courses with more development scheduled
 Community Action Plan in development which will eventually become part of the CRM
 Job fairs attended with Hub Job Fairs and Open Days planned for the Spring
 We have started to align some of the common activities of Forwards/GEM and GFirst 

LEP including work with schools/colleges and employer relationships
 Interactions with libraries with a view to delivering outreach in communities – this will 

start in Gloucester and Stroud in February
 During partner visits/presentations the Hub is receiving positive feedback re the idea of 

having one place to go
 We are having conversations with some Districts re major recruitment possibilities eg 

J10 and Kings Square
 “Inclusive employment” and the E & S Skills Hub has a specific section in the Skills 

Strategy and we are involved in the social value conversations

Employment Programmes
 Our employment offer for people who are disadvantaged in the labour market has 

grown considerably and we now offer in addition to our core offer for people with health 
conditions or disabilities;

o Support for NEETs through the Works for Me Programme with cohorts 2 and 3 
planned start dates in March

o Support for Care Leavers through Step Forwards – recruitment in progress
 Both programmes offer us the opportunity to be innovative in the way we meet young 

people’s needs including working with commissioning and DWP to overcome the 
specific barrier of benefits that have stopped some of our Care Leavers from entering 
employment

 All programmes are delivering and achieving outcomes and we have achieved our 
yearly target for Forwards job outcomes

 Recruiting staff is an issue and we are currently carrying several vacancies with very 
few applicants in comparison to pre-pandemic times

The Gloucestershire GEM Project
 Over the next few months we will be putting in place close-down procedures for GEM 

which will include as a priority compliance checking all programme documentation to 
mitigate financial risk to GCC and partners.

 An interim Monitoring and Evaluation Report has now been produced with a final report 
due in the Autumn 2022.

ICS S256 Funding (two year funding)
 This funding has two elements;

o To open up opportunities for young people to work in ICS business areas by 
creating work experience, traineeships, apprenticeships and supported 
internships especially targeting young people who are at risk of long-term 

Page 56



unemployment.  Two apprenticeships will be created with this funding to work on 
rotation in different areas and work with schools and colleges to promote health 
and social care careers to young people in education.  This will link with the 
Proud to Care work and GFirst LEP Careers Hub.

o To address health inequalities for people who are at risk of long-term 
unemployment.  We will introduce two roles – a Mental Health Job Broker and a 
Job Broker supporting people with long term conditions including looking at 
employability under the transforming care agenda.  

 We will also be engaging with the Anchor Institutions agenda as part of this work, and it 
links with other aspects of our inclusive employment provision.

Kickstart
 We can no longer take any new vacancies into our Gateway.  Over the next couple of 

months we will be working with DWP to fill as many of the existing vacancies as 
possible.

 Currently we have seen 140 young people enter onto our opportunities in the Gateway 
and 30 within GCC

 Of those who leave/complete Kickstart in our Gateway 72% have gone into paid 
employment.

 One third of our participants have declared a disability or health condition

GIS Healthcare
 The supported employment element of GIS transferred to us in September.  We are 

currently looking at how the DWP grant can be utilised more effectively to help more 
disabled people into work including looking at external host employers.

- REPORT END - 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 3 2021/22

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 3 2021/22.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Highways & Flood 3
Environment & Planning 4
Strategic Risk Register Summary 5

Environment & Communities Scrutiny Committee

1

P
age 59



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
 Risk Value Decreasing
 No Change

Measure Symbols
 Performance Better than Target
 Performance Worse than Target
 Performance significantly worse than Target
 No information
 Missing Target
 No Value

Bigger is Better  A bigger value for this measure is good 
Smaller is Better  A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best  Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 60



Highways

Cllr Vernon Smith

Highways

% of 2 hour emergency repairs made on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 98.0% 98.0% 100.0% 99.0% 99.0% 96.0%

The quarterly average number of 2hour and 24hour
defect repairs completed has followed a decreasing
trend over the last two years (down 24%, 818 to 623
and 27%, 757 to 547 respectively compared with
2020/21). This would indicate that where defects
relate to potholes, we are undertaking structural
maintenance to the right roads and damage is
therefore less severe and can be managed through
routine repair. Timeliness of completing these repairs
remains high.

n/a

% of 24 hour defects repaired on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 100.0% 100.0% 99.0% 99.0% 100.0% 96.0% n/a

% of 28 day defects repaired or made safe in time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 100.0% 95.0% 96.0% 97.0% 99.0% 95.0%

While the number of 28days defects completed
reduced in Quarter 3, demand is 50% higher than
2020/21 financial yeartodate and 67% higher than
2019/20 (33,562 defects compared with 22,255 and
20,037 respectively). Despite increased levels of
defect repairs needed, timeliness of emergency and
defect repairs continues to be better than target.

n/a

% of structural maintenance programme delivered Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 87.0% 99.0% 32.0% 61.0% 75.0% 75.0% n/a

Number of Winter maintenance runs completed Smaller is Better Quarterly 30 128 5 0 25 n/a

Average number of additional days to complete overdue 28
day defect repairs

Smaller is Better Quarterly 11.45 19.00

On average, it took 19 days to complete all defect
repair in the 28day category in Quarter 3. At the
time of reporting, there were no 28day defect
repairs that were overdue. We are working with the
provider to automate reporting in order to regularly
receive data regarding average additional days taken
for overdue 28day defect repairs. 

n/a

Overall resident satisfaction with Highways network Bigger is Better Annual 52.0% 51.0% 52.0% 52.0% 50.0% 52.0% n/a

% of principal roads where maintenance should be considered Smaller is Better Annual 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Principal roads equate
to 10.5% of the road network covering 571 Km.

4.0%

% of the Nonprincipal classified roads where maintenance
should be considered

Smaller is Better Annual 5.0% 5.0% 6.0% 5.0% 4.0% 5.0%

Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Nonprincipal (classified
roads) equate to 36.2% of the road network covering
1,962 Km

7.0%

% of unclassified roads where maintenance should be
considered

Smaller is Better Annual 12% 13% 13% 12% 12%

Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Unclassified roads
equate to 53.3% of the road network covering 2,894
Km.

?

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21 Actual Dec21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec17 Dec18 Dec19 Dec20
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Mar20
Actual
Mar21

Target
Mar21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Mar20 Actual Mar21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Floods

% delivery of the annual gully emptying programme (as
published on the website)

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 97.0% 100.0% 32.0% 64.0% 83.0% 75.0% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 61



Highways

Cllr Vernon Smith

Highways

% of 2 hour emergency repairs made on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 98.0% 98.0% 100.0% 99.0% 99.0% 96.0%

The quarterly average number of 2hour and 24hour
defect repairs completed has followed a decreasing
trend over the last two years (down 24%, 818 to 623
and 27%, 757 to 547 respectively compared with
2020/21). This would indicate that where defects
relate to potholes, we are undertaking structural
maintenance to the right roads and damage is
therefore less severe and can be managed through
routine repair. Timeliness of completing these repairs
remains high.

n/a

% of 24 hour defects repaired on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 100.0% 100.0% 99.0% 99.0% 100.0% 96.0% n/a

% of 28 day defects repaired or made safe in time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 100.0% 95.0% 96.0% 97.0% 99.0% 95.0%

While the number of 28days defects completed
reduced in Quarter 3, demand is 50% higher than
2020/21 financial yeartodate and 67% higher than
2019/20 (33,562 defects compared with 22,255 and
20,037 respectively). Despite increased levels of
defect repairs needed, timeliness of emergency and
defect repairs continues to be better than target.

n/a

% of structural maintenance programme delivered Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 87.0% 99.0% 32.0% 61.0% 75.0% 75.0% n/a

Number of Winter maintenance runs completed Smaller is Better Quarterly 30 128 5 0 25 n/a

Average number of additional days to complete overdue 28
day defect repairs

Smaller is Better Quarterly 11.45 19.00

On average, it took 19 days to complete all defect
repair in the 28day category in Quarter 3. At the
time of reporting, there were no 28day defect
repairs that were overdue. We are working with the
provider to automate reporting in order to regularly
receive data regarding average additional days taken
for overdue 28day defect repairs. 

n/a

Overall resident satisfaction with Highways network Bigger is Better Annual 52.0% 51.0% 52.0% 52.0% 50.0% 52.0% n/a

% of principal roads where maintenance should be considered Smaller is Better Annual 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Principal roads equate
to 10.5% of the road network covering 571 Km.

4.0%

% of the Nonprincipal classified roads where maintenance
should be considered

Smaller is Better Annual 5.0% 5.0% 6.0% 5.0% 4.0% 5.0%

Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Nonprincipal (classified
roads) equate to 36.2% of the road network covering
1,962 Km

7.0%

% of unclassified roads where maintenance should be
considered

Smaller is Better Annual 12% 13% 13% 12% 12%

Road condition is based on a sample survey
undertaken in Summer 2020. Unclassified roads
equate to 53.3% of the road network covering 2,894
Km.

?

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21 Actual Dec21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec17 Dec18 Dec19 Dec20
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Mar20
Actual
Mar21

Target
Mar21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Mar20 Actual Mar21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Floods

% delivery of the annual gully emptying programme (as
published on the website)

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 97.0% 100.0% 32.0% 64.0% 83.0% 75.0% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

4

P
age 62



Environment and Planning

Cllr David Gray

Climate Change

Council Carbon Emissions, buildings & transport (exc schools)
Tonnes of CO2e

Smaller is Better Year to Date 2,192.78 4,228.60 6,486.29 1,274.16 2,261.02 2,193.00 ?

Renewable energy generation (kWh) from the Councils Estate
(exc schools)

Bigger is Better Year to Date 29,818,032 44,700,725 62,753,382 17,027,388 31,665,411 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Actual Sep21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Waste

Residual household waste per household (Kgs) Smaller is Better Forecast 464 451 461 457 440 479 520
% of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting

Bigger is Better Forecast 52.0% 50.9% 50.7% 51.0% 51.5% 51.0% 48.7%

Net power production (MWhr) by the Gloucestershire Energy
From Waste facility

Bigger is Better 29,738 35,662 33,491 29,130 34,138 29,100 n/a

% of waste diverted from landfill Bigger is Better Forecast 97.2% 97.1% 97.4% 97.4% 97.4% 92.8% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

5

P
age 63



Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR12.1

Failure to deliver the county council’s climate change strategy,
impacting our ability to deliver our organisation, partnership
and community activities, and to mitigate the impacts of a
changing climate on Gloucestershire’s natural environment,
communities, business and visitors.

Chick, Colin High 25 Moderate 10 High 15 High 15 Moderate 10 Moderate
10

In December 2021, Cabinet approved the Climate Change Strategy Annual
Report and Action Plan 2022/232027/28.
At the same meeting, the Council budget was approved for public consultation,
which includes a proposed permanent provision of £1m revenue funding for
Climate Change action
20,000 trees received, 'heeledin' to be distributed to partners and landowners
for this planting season
20,000 trees funded to be planted this season using grant funding issued to
partners
10,000 ash dieback replacement trees to be planted this season by Highways;
4for1 replacement vs 2for1 target
60,000 trees will have been planted in total by the end of this season (inc
10,000 ash dieback replacement last season)
New staff joined the Sustainability Team, EE&I:
Climate Change & Air Quality Officer, 1 FTE
Sustainability & Engagement Officers, 0.8 FTE
Tree Project Officer, 1 FTE appointed December, to start late January 2022

Greener Gloucestershire campaign ran alongside COP26 in Glasgow (Nov), to
raise awareness of climate change actions by the Leadership Gloucestershire
partners
Tender published for electric vehicle onroad charging infrastructure, to be
awarded January

SR14.1 Emergence of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Chick, Colin High 16 High 16 High 16 High 16 High 16 High 16
Continued discussions with all 5 District Councils re their CIL, including bidding
where appropriate. JCS CIL review still ongoing. 

Strategic Risk 12: Climate Change

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21
Actual
Dec21

DoT Dec
21

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 14: Community Infrastructure Levy

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21
Actual
Dec21

DoT Dec
21

Mitigating Actions

6

P
age 64


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Climate Leadership Gloucestershire Group
	Appendix 1. Climate Leadership Gloucestershire Update Report Feb 22

	5 School Street Trials
	Gloucestershire's School Streets Trial Programme March 2022

	7 Work Plan
	9 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT: ECONOMY, ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE
	Environment  Communities Scrutiny Performance and Risk Scorecard Q3 2021-22


